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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Sterling Depot is an excellent example of late Victorian eclectic architecture 
used for a small railroad station. Elements of Jacobethan,Italian Villa and Romanesque 
revival are mixed successfully in this delightful structure.

The depot is long and narrow, parallel to the tracks. The long facades are symmetrical. 
The structure is one story with multiple hipped roof elements. Brick with stone and 
wood trim are the materials.

The entrance facade has a projecting three-story square tower with a doorway. The tower 
exhibits a considerable amount of decorative work; a compound arch with keystone above 
the doorway, on the tower faces small corbelled brick arches, windows with diamond- 
paned upper sashes and brick segmental arched openings with keystones, and brick corbels 
at the roof eaves. Each side of the tower has a round decorative element which was un­ 
doubtedly intended to contain a clock face. The tower is flanked at each side by two- 
story gable ends with a round arched window in each and triple, diamond paned window 
above. Both the tower and gable ends are supported by splayed and battered stone 
buttresses.

The track side facade has a slightly projecting two-story gable end at the center with 
a round, arched window. The gable end pierces the hipped roof with the eave following 
the line of the arched window. The arched window is repeated in the lights around the 
two doors which flank the center gable end, and which are sheltered under the roof 
eaves.

The interior of the building consists of nine rooms, the larger two being waiting 
rooms. The floor in the central ticket lobby and both waiting rooms are laid in a 
harlequin pattern of alternating black and beige colored concrete. Oak is used as 
trim around windows and as a wainscoting in the interior. There are four of the ori­ 
ginal double-faced oak benches located in the waiting rooms.

The building is essentially unaltered from the original except for small mounted 
lighting fixtures and the light gray asphalt roofing shingles which replaced the ori­ 
ginal wood shingles. The structure, however, is starting to show rapid deterioration 
because no effort is being made by the railroad to make necessary repairs. The com­ 
munity is showing concern for its survival.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Sterling Depot is significant architecturally for its successful combination of 
styles into a pleasing and unified whole. It is a delightful example of railroad 
station architecture of the period. Historically, the structure stands as a monument 
to the time when the railroads lived in successful symbiosis with the towns they 
served. The towns grew up around the railroads, and the railroads, making consider­ 
able profits from the relationship., erected these small gems of architecture to 
shelter their customers.

Work began on the depot on August 28, 1902 and was completed in January of 1903. The 
estimated cost was between $15,000 and $20,000. Trains began stopping at the new 
Sterling depot on Friday, January 23, 1903. The event was heralded in The Logan 
County Advocate: "The assertion has been made that there is not another town within 
a radius of 100 miles which can claim as good a passenger depot as Sterling now 
possesses." The article went on to say that the building of pressed brick and Ft. 
Collins stone consisted of ten rooms, the larger ones being two waiting rooms, one 
for male and one for female patrons, "the ladies waiting room being equipped with 
four cozy rocking chairs and two writing or reading tables." The station also had a 
spacious ticket office ? vestibule, ticket lobby and baggage rooms.

The history of Sterling's relationship to the railroads began years before 1902. The 
valley's early pioneers, mostly Southerns seeking new opportunities after the Civil 
War, chose the area because the Colorado Central Railroad had plans to construct tracks 
along the river. They began to arrive in 1873, but were not to have their railroad 
for another decade. With help from colonist M. C. King, who donated eighty acres to 
the Union Pacific for their shops, the railroad was finally built and Sterling estab­ 
lished.

With the opening of train service on July 4, 1881, Sterling's boom years commenced. 
The town had a healthy financial base with access to eastern markets for its agricul­ 
tural products, cattle and sheep. The severe winters and disputes between sheep and 
cattle interests during the 1890s caused a setback in the town's development, but with 
the introduction of the sugar beet and improved irrigation methods after 1900, the 
town flourished once again. The mushrooming population of the town and its adjacent 
area made it necessary for the railroads to consider replacing their old facilities 
with a grand new depot. The Union Pacific Depot crowned this most important period 
in the development of the town.
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historic Sterling Union Pacific Railroad Depot
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7. Description
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XX moved date

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The 1902 Sterling Depot (listed in the National Register at its former location) is a 
long, horizontally-oriented brick structure which has a large hip roof with flared 
eaves and brackets, prominent parapeted cross gables and a projecting three story square 
tower containing the entrance. The decorative elements are generally Romanesque Revival 
in feeling and include round-arched windows and doorway surrounds, small diamond-paned 
windows, splayed and battered stone buttresses at the corner of tower and gable ends, 
corbel tables around the tower, and a stone belt course which ties the various elements 
together.

The rear elevation, which was originally the track side, has a central projecting cross- 
gabled element with a hooded round-arched window and doors to either side with round-arched 
lights.

The original site of the depot was on Front Street, with the northwest side of the depot 
facing the commercial district of Sterling and the rear adjacent to the Union Pacific 
tracks. In 1984 the building was moved to a location on the north side of Front Street 
one block west of the former location. The depot faces Front Street, as it did originally, 
with an unobstructed view of the tracks. The new site is a corner lot, one half block wide, 
which accommodates the scale of the building and will permit extensive landscaping. In 
that a trackside relocation was not possible, the new lot presented the best alternative 
for retaining an association with the commercial district, as well as a visual link with 
the tracks. The buildings which now surround the depot on Front and Main streets are 
commercial, one to two stories in height and which date to the turn of the century. These 
buildings are similar to those which the depot formerly faced.

The new site, however, was not spacious enough to accommodate the entire depot with its 
1923 additions. These sections consisted of a ladies restroom twenty and one half feet 
long added to the south end of the building and a freight wing fifty-six feet long added 
to the original thirty-three foot baggage wing at the north end of the building. Since 
the 1902 appearance of the depot was considered important and appropriate historically 
to select as the date to which to renovate the building, it was decided to remove the 
1923 additions before moving the building. The baggage addition had no significant 
interior features. The interior walls were of cement, with no wood trim, save for door 
and window frames. The floor was concrete. (See footnote #2 below for a full description 
of the moving process.) The original depot measured one hundred seven feet seven inches 
long. Today it is one hundred three feet in length. The present baggage wing as reconstruc­ 
ted is fifty-three feet three inches—within three feet of its original length.

The original baggage room (now at the south end of the depot) created a problem in moving 
because the original north wall had been removed when the 1923 extension was added. A 
proposal was made by the mover (Carl Ryberg) to remove most of the remaining two walls 
of the original baggage section and to substitute portions of the 1923 addition.

In that the 1923 section was built to match the depot in brickwork, and configuration and 
sizeof the bays, as well as trimwork on the wall surface, it was decided the original 
appearance could be replicated using the 1923 addition. The wing, as it looks today, 
does appear original. In its present condition, the freight wing has an original 1902 door 
and a window and a 1923 door and window on the facade facing Front Street. The only change 
from the original fenestration is the addition of the 1923 door between the two windows. 
The end wall originally had a freight door; it presently has two windows. The trackside 
elevation originally had a door and two windows; it now has four windows.
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The interior of the existing building contains seven rooms, the two largest of which are 
the waiting rooms. The floors of the central ticket lobby and waiting rooms were removed 
and stored during the moving process and are awaiting restoration to the original harlequin 
pattern of block and beige concrete and tiles. The trim around the windows, the window 
seats and the wainscotting are of oak. Four of the original oak benches which were in the 
waiting rooms have been stored for future use.

Recently, the end wall of the ladies waiting room was restored to its original 1902 appea­ 
rance with two windows above the stone belt course. Care has been taken to match the brick 
of the wall and the stone of the belt course. Complete restoration of the structure will 
take place when the Sterling Downtown Improvement Corporation finds an appropriate owner 
and use for the depot.

The original site has a highway overpass to its immediate north, a parking lot 
to its immediate south where a metal rectangular building used as a stationmaster 1 s office 
now sits. There are no other historic buildings associated with the railroad depot remain­ 
ing on the surrounding land owned by the Union Pacific.

firm of H. Carl Ryberg Construction Company moved the depot. The Moving Agree 
ment included this description of the procedure which was subsequently used bv the firm

Mover will demolish the addition known as the ladies restroom. More particularly 
described as the west twenty and one half feet of the south end of the existing 
depot, and approximately fifty-six feet of the freight additions added on the 
original constructed depot on the east end of the structure. Mover will salvage 
certain materials for the Owner and deliver to the Owner ? s storage area in accor­ 
dance with the following: Mover will preserve all light fixtures, door jams, 
windows and the connecting trim, freight scales, freight doors, brick, stone and 
bric-a-brac trim.

Due to balancing the main portion of the structure with the tower, it will be 
necessary to divide the structure into two sections for the moving phase. Mover 
will separate the structure into two sections, provide temporary shoring and 
bracing for the moving and setting down upon the foundation at the new site. 
Mover warrants that the work to be done will be up to the highest standards of 
the industry. Mover will remove the concrete floor, preserving the floor tile 
where possible, tuckpoint areas of the exterior brick replacing some missing 
and damaged brick where needed for moving purposes. Bracing of the tower will 
require removal of roof coverings where bracing partitions are installed between 
the tower and the roof. The cable gusset bracing will require a hole in the roof 
and ceiling for the cable to penetrate through to tie the tower back to the main 
structure. Moving of the structure entails supporting and moving the brick and 
sandstone around the perimeter walls that rest upon the existing concrete founda­ 
tion walls, the interior frame partitions around the agents and ticket office, 
ceiling and roof of the structure. It is contemplated that the frame partitions 
located in the freight addition will not be moved. Separation of the structure
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will be in a close proximity east of the brick wall separating the main section 
of the depot from the freight section. The remaining freight section of the depot 
to be moved will be approximately 33 f long. Moving of the present attached section 
would leave the east end open and considerable work and cost to reconstruct the 
open end. Subject to historic preservation approval, it is recommended that the 
existing north 33* of the freight addition be substituted and moved instead of the 
existing section.

Roof Repair. Mover will repair the cut area where the structure is separated 
restoring it to its original condition, as nearly as practicable, except for 
the roof covering, which will be covered with felt or other materials necessary 
for temporary protection from the leakage, blowing dust, or other such weather 
hazards.

All restoration work is to be performed by Mover in a manner satisfactory to the 
historic preservation architects of the Colorado Historical Society, or their 
agents.

The recommendation of the mover concerning the freight addition was accepted and the 1923 
section was moved with the rest of the building. Project architect Ronald Abo in a letter 
dated February 19, 1985, gives further details:

The mover felt that it would be difficult to remove the 1923 baggage extension 
and then move the original baggage section because the end wall of the original 
baggage section had been removed when the 1923 baggage extension was added. He 
recommended substituting the 1923 baggage addition for the existing baggage 
section. This resulted in a $5,000 deduction from the contract price.

At the time the mover proposed this, it is my recollection that we obtained appro­ 
val from the State Historical Society to do this as long as the 1923 baggage 
addition was restored to exactly the same configuration as the original baggage 
section.
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Specific dates 1902 Builder/Architect Unknown

f

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The Sterling Depot is significant as one of the most important monuments in this town 
whose very existence is attributable to the railroad, and as an excellent example of 
railroad depot architecture of the time. It represents one of the two most notable 
public buildings in Sterling, both in terms of its architecture and history (the other 
being the courthouse).

The building of the Union Pacific depot in 1902 crowned Sterling's greatest period of 
development. The history of Sterling, a small community on the eastern plains of 
Colorado, began in the early part of the 1870s with the arrival of southerners seeking 
a new life after the Civil War. They chose the site because of Colorado Central Rail­ 
road plans to construct tracks nearby, but not until 1881 after colonist M.C. King had 
donated eighty acres to the Union Pacific for shops was a railroad finally extended to 
the location and the town of Sterling established.

The town flourished over the next decades because the railroad provided access to 
eastern markets for the agricultural products (which after 1900 included sugar beets) 
and the cattle and sheep raised on the surrounding farms. With the town well-established, 
the Union Pacific decided in 1902 to replace its old facilities with a grand new depot.

The Romanesque Revival style chosen for the building by the Union Pacific designers was 
already a bit of nostalgia in 1902, but the characteristic elements of the style created 
the impressive visual effect desired for a building with such community-wide importance. 
The tower in particular had been de rigeur for every building of consequence during the 
previous fifty years. The floor plan of the depot was typical with its two waiting rooms, 
agent's office and projecting agent's bay with a view of oncoming trains, and the over­ 
hanging roof for sheltering waiting passengers.

The importance of the railroad to Sterling continued to grow, and by 1923 even the 1902 
depot proved inadequate and additions were made to each end of the building. However, 
the status of railroads has changed drastically in the last decades. By 1983, with the 
railroad no longer in need of a passenger depot in Sterling, the Union Pacific offered 
to donate the structure to the town with the provision that it be moved off railroad 
property. The city and the Sterling Downtown Improvement Corporation worked vigorously 
with the railroad in an effort to maintain the depot on its original site. Although 
the Union Pacific had no plans for construction on the depot land, the company stated that 
they did not want the liability of having the building on their property.

Given the final option by the Union Pacific to either move the building or see it demo­ 
lished, Sterling citizens mounted a successful drive to raise necessary funds, and the 
city subsequently elected to accept the building and to move it. Because the city was 
unable to budget funds for renovation, the Sterling Downtown Improvement Corporation, 
with plans to develop the structure for commercial use, was given title to the property.

SDIC has demonstrated its concern for the retention of the historic character of the 
building and has planned a careful restoration of the interior as well as the exterior.
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EXISTING PARCEL MAP

0

Sterling Union Pacific Railroad Depot 
Logan County, Colorado

By: Environmental Planning and Research 
Inc., Chicago, Illinois

No Date. Scale: 9/10 inch = 100 feet 

Original location and new site shown.
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